
 

  

  

Planning & Development 
 

AGENDA 
 

City of Alpena Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, January 10, 2017, 7:00 p.m. 
Alpena, Michigan 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Regular Meeting November 8, 2016  
 
PUBLIC HEARING AND COMMISSION ACTION: 
 

1. 17-SU-01 Sunrise Mission Inc. has requested a special use permit be granted for the existing legal 
non-conforming multi-family home at 608 W. Chisholm Street.  Article 5.14B. 

 
BUSINESS: 

1. Approval of 2017 Planning Commission Schedule 

COMMUNICATIONS:  

REPORTS: 

1. Development Update 
2. Redevelopment Ready Communities Program 

 
CALL TO PUBLIC: 

MEMBERS’ COMMENTS: 

ADJOURNMENT: 
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Memorandum 
 

Date:  January 6, 2017 
 
To:  Planning Commission 
 
Copy:  Greg Sundin, City Manager 
  Don Gilmet, Building Official 
 
From:  Adam Poll, Planning and Development Director 
 
Subject: 17-SU-01 Request for Special Use Permit at 608 W Chisholm   
 
P.C. Case #17-SU-01.  Sunrise Mission Inc., has requested a special use permit be granted for the existing 
legal non-conforming multi-family home at 608 W Chisholm Street. Article 5.14B  
 
The property at 608 W Chisholm Street is currently a legal non-conforming multifamily use located in 
the Commercial Corridor District (CCD). It has been utilized as multifamily housing since City staff began 
maintaining rental records in 2001. In 2010, the Zoning Ordinance required a special permit for 
multifamily housing in the CCD District. As the house was already a multifamily use, and a Special Permit 
was never obtained it became a legal non-conforming use at that time. Because of its status as a legal 
non-conforming use, the house can continue its use as a multifamily dwelling indefinitely until its use is 
changed. If the use changes, it could only revert back to a multifamily home through the special permit 
process.  
 
The applicants are requesting a special permit for the property to allow for a multifamily use, which 
would eliminate its non-conforming status. Most often, applicants seek a special permit in this situation 
as many banks and insurance companies prefer to avoid non-conforming status as it can cause issues if 
the house is ever destroyed or damaged significantly.  
 
Surrounding uses include a residential human care facility to the northwest at 616 and 622 W Chisholm 
Street, a commercial use (Dairy Queen) to the southeast at 600 W Chisholm Street and single family 
residential homes to the southwest across the alley.  
 
Any new building that is constructed in the CCD, is required to meet setbacks, and parking 
requirements. Setback requirements in the CCD allow buildings can have a 0’ front yard setback in this 
location as well as a 10’ rear yard setback. There is a side yard setback of 10’ for any use abutting 
residential district or use. In this case there would appear to be a setback of 10’ adjoining the property 
at 616 W Chisholm Street, which would meet the requirements. The side yard setback along the Dairy 
Queen property at 600 W Chisholm Street would appear to be at least 16’. Parking regulations would 
require 2 spaces be provided multi (2 or more) bedroom unit and 1.5 spaces per one bedroom unit. In 
this case, records indicate that this building has 2 multi bedroom units and 2 single bedroom units and if 
built new would require 7 parking spaces. There would appear to be sufficient parking provided on the 
parcel to meet these requirements.  
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Staff would note that the use at 608 W Chisholm Street is owned by the Sunrise Mission Inc., but is not 
part of the Residential Human Care facility that operates with a separate special use permit at 622 W 
Chisholm and 616 W Chisholm Street. 608 W Chisholm Street is a standalone multifamily rental house 
that is registered and routinely inspected by City staff as all rentals are required to be. The proposed 
Special Permit is not associated with the formally proposed activity center.  
 
As the property is an existing multifamily use and has been since the City has been keeping records of 
this type of use, and the property would appear to meet the requirements of the CCD Zoning District, 
staff would support the approval of the Special Permit for a multifamily dwelling at 608 W Chisholm 
Street.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

 

608 W Chisholm Street– Front 

Rear of 608 W Chisholm Street looking at proposed 
location of activity center.  

PC Case No. 17-SU-01 



 

 

Rear of 616 W Chisholm Street and required 
fenced in playground. 

PC Case No. 17-SU-01 

Rear of 608 W Chisholm and potential en-
trance off of Chisholm Street.  




